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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C., we are pleased to
present to you the Company’s Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2025.
The report provides a comprehensive overview of the Company’s financial and operational
performance, the key strategic initiatives implemented J>4 the year, as well as our outlook and
sustainable growth plans.

First: Strategic Vision

During 2025, Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. continued to enhance its adaptability and
resilience amid global economic challenges and rapidly evolving regulatory developments. The
Company successfully strengthened its competitive position in the market by improving
operational efficiency, developing business models, and enhancing customer experience through
an approach grounded in quality and sustainability.

Our focus remains on achieving balanced and sustainable growth, strengthening the risk
management framework, adopting a conservative approach in liquidity and investment
management, and continuing to invest in digital transformation and technological innovation,
thereby reinforcing our financial strength and enhancing our ability to create long-term value for
our shareholders.

Second: Key Financial Performance Indicators

In compliance with the regulations and directives of the Central Bank of the United Arab
Emirates, the Company continues to establish and maintain technical reserves in accordance with
the recommendations of the appointed actuary, ensuring the adequacy of provisions and the
sustainability of solvency.

The year 2025 also witnessed a positive development in the Company’s credit standing, as Fitch
Ratings upgraded the Company’s Insurer Financial Strength (IFS) rating to “BBB+” with a
Stable Outlook, reflecting the robustness of its financial position and the effectiveness of its risk
management.
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Third: Financial Results for 2025

The Company achieved positive financial results reflecting improved operational and investment
performance compared to the previous year, as follows:

Gross Written Premium: AED 678.6 million (2024: AED 654.7 million)
Insurance Revenue: AED 614.8 million (2024: AED 591.4 million)
Insurance Service Result: AED 33.7 million (2024: AED 28.6 million)
Investment Income: AED 26.9 million (2024: AED 19.7 million)

Net Profit after Tax: AED 45.9 million (2024: AED 38.3 million)

Total Equity as at 31/12/2025: AED 289.3 million (2024: AED 243.3 million)
Total Assets as at 31/12/2025: AED 1.332 billion (2024: AED 1.514 billion)

These results reflect enhanced operational efficiency, strengthened profitability, and improved
quality of the insurance portfolio.

Fourth: Corporate Governance and Risk Management

The Board of Directors reaffirms its firm commitment to applying the highest standards of
corporate governance in accordance with international best practices and within the approved
regulatory frameworks of the United Arab Emirates. Through its various committees, the Board
exercises effective oversight to ensure compliance, proper resource management, and a balanced
approach between risk and return.

The Company has also continued to develop and enhance its Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) framework to proactively address potential risks, optimize capital allocation, and ensure
business continuity under various circumstances.

Fifth: Dividend Distribution

In light of the positive financial performance and the progress achieved in profitability and
financial stability indicators, the Board of Directors is pleased to propose to the General
Assembly a cash dividend distribution of 4% of the paid-up capital, amounting to AED 9.20
million, in addition to the issuance of bonus shares amounting to AED 20 million, subject to the
approval of the General Assembly and the competent regulatory authorities.

This recommendation represents a historic milestone for the Company, as it will mark — upon
approval — the first-time dividends are distributed to shareholders since the Company’s

establishment.
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Sixth: Acknowledgment and Appreciation

The Board of Directors extends its sincere gratitude and appreciation to the shareholders for their
continued trust, as well as to our valued clients, regulatory authorities, and strategic partners for
their support and cooperation.

The Board also expresses its deep appreciation to the executive management team and all

employees of the Company for their dedication, professionalism, and teamwork, which have
directly contributed to achieving these positive results and strengthening the foundations of

sustainable growth.

We look forward with confidence to continuing our journey of success and achieving further
accomplishments in the coming year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman of the Board
Nasser Rashid Abdulaziz Almoalla
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Union Insurance Company P.J.8.C. (the “Company”), which comprise
the staternent of financial position as at 31 December 2025, and the statement of profit or loss, statement of other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the financial staterents, including matetial accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present faitly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2025, and its financial petformance and its cash flows fot the year then ended
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (LASB).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Awditor's Responsibilities for the Aundit of the Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with Infernational Ethics Standards Board for Acconmtants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Acconntants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code)
together with the other ethical requitements that ate relevant to our audit of the Company’s financial statements in
the United Arab Emirates, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements of the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our Opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, wete of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the yeat ended 31 December 2025. These matters wete addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Conttract Liabilities and Reinsurance Contract Assets are
valued at AED 615.3 million and AED 390.1 million,
respectively. (Refer to note 13),

Valuation of these insutrance contract liabilities and
reinsurance contract assets involves significant
judgements and estimates, particularly with respect to the
eligibility of measurement models and estimation of the
present value of future cash flows.

‘These cash flows and liabilities primatily include expected
premium receipts, expected ultimate cost of claims and
allocation of insurance acquisition cashflows, which ate
within the contract boundaties.

The calculation for these liabilities and assets includes
significant estimation and involvement of actuarial
experts in otder to ensure the approptiateness of
methodology, assumptions and data used to determine
the estimated future cash flows and the approptiateness
of the discount rates used to determine the present value
of future cash flows.

As a result of all the above factors, we consider the
valuation of these insurance contract liabilities and
reinsurance contract assets as a key audit matter.

As at 31 December 2025 the Company s Insurance

We performed the following procedures in conjunction
with our actuatial specialists:

- Understood and evaluated the process, the design
and implementation of controls in place to
determine valuation of Insurance contract liabilities
and Reinsurance contract assets;

- Assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management’s appointed actuary;

- Tested the completeness, and on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of data used to determine
future cashflows;

- Evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology,
significant assumptions including risk adjustment,
PAA eligibility assessment, discount rates and
expenses included within the fulfilment cashflows.
This included consideration of the reasonableness of
assumptions against actual historical expetience and
the appropriateness of any judgments applied;

- Independently repetformed the calculation to assess
the mathematical accuracy of the Insurance contract
liabiliies and Reinsurance Contract Assets on
selected classes of business, particulatly focusing on
largest and most uncertain reserves;

- Evaluated and tested the calculation of the allowance
for expected credit loss allowance including the data,
key assumptions and judgments used; and

- Assessed the adequacy of disclosures included in the
financial statements against the requitements of
IFRS Accounting Standards.

Other Information

Management and directors are responsible for the othet information. The othet information comprises the information
included in the Boatd of Directors’ report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Out opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have petformed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholdets of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of the Management and the Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB and their preparation in compliance with the UAE Federal Decree Law No.
(32) of 2021 (as amended), and UAE Federal Law No. (6) of 2025 and for such intetnal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

Of errof.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concetn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concetn basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance ate responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 2 whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errot, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can atise from fraud or error and are considered matetial if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of usets taken on
the basis of these financial statements,

As patt of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or etror,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The tisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, ot the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an undetstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that ate
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the putpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

©  Evaluate the approptiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosutes made by management.

®  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidenced obtained, whethet a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditot’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events ot conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, sttucture and content of the financial statements, including the disclosutes, and
whether the financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate to those chatged with governance regarding, among other mattes, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencics in intetnal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requitements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, telated safeguards.

From the matters communicated to those charged with govetnance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current petriod and are thetefore the key audit matters. We
desctibe these matters in our auditot’s repost unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our teport because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requitements
Further, as requited by the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021 (as amended), we report that:

)  We have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;

iiy The financial statements have been prepared and comply, in all material respects, with the applicable provisions of
the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021 (as amended);

i) The Company has maintained proper books of account in accordance with established accounting principles;

iv) The financial information included in the Board of Ditectors’ report is consistent with the books of account of the
Company;

v)  Investments in shates and stocks during the year ended 31 December 2025 are disclosed in note 5 to these financial
statements;

vi) Note 10 to the financial statements discloses material related party transactions and balances, and the terms under
which they were conducted;

vi)) The Company did not make any social contdbution duting the year ended 31 December 2025 as disclosed in note

25; and

vii) Based on the information that has been made available to us nothing has come to our attention which canses us to
believe that the Company has, during the financial year ended 31 December 2025, contravened any of the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021 (as amended), ot its Articles of Association, which
would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at 31 December 2025;

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (6) of 2025, we report that we have obtained all the information
and explanation we considered necessary for the purpose of out audit.

P.O Box: 1968
Sharjah - U AE

Registration No: 935\,
Sharjah, United Arab

16 February 2026



Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2025

Assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use-assets
Unit-linked assets
Investment securities
Statutory deposit
Reinsurance contract assets
Other receivables
Bank deposits with original maturities of
more than three months
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Special reserve

Fair value reserve

Reinsurance reserve

Retained earnings / (Accurnulated losses)
Total equity

Liabilities

Provision for employees’ end of service
benefits

Insurance contract liabilities

Reinsurance contract liabilides

Other payables

Unit-linked liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

31 December 31 December
Notes 2025 2024
AED000 AED’000
3,330 3,890
1,394 2,574
22.1 3,297 912
5.3 341,261 359,176
5 57,374 47,091
6 10,000 10,000
13 390,092 612,333
15 54,963 55,161
439,045 408,993

7.1
7 30,853 13,920
1,331,609 1,514,050
8 230,000 330,939
2.1 6,493 21,851
9.2 - 21,851
9.3 166 168
9.4 12,915 11,274
39,739 (142,745)
289,313 243 338
23 8,731 12,158
13 615,342 818,806
13 1,791 1,563
16 110,250 113,579
12 306,182 324,606
1,042,296 1,270,712
1,331,609 1,514,050

To the best of our knowledge, the financial information present fairly in all raterial respects the financial condition,
results of operation and cash flows of the Company as of, and for the year ended 31 December 2025. The financial

information was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf by:

_=

Naster Rashid AAbduluzz Almeals
Chairman

Ramez Abou Zaid

Chief Executive Qfficer \

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

W\ =
X~
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Statement of profit or loss
For the year ended 31 December 2025

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses

Insurance service result before reinsurance
contracts held

Allocation of reinsurance premiums

Amounts recoverable from reinsurance for incurred claims

Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held
Insurance service result

Interest income

Net gain on financial assets at FVIPL
Other investment income

Total investment income

Insurance finance expenses from insurance contracts issued

Reinsurance finance income from reinsurance contracts
held
Net insurance financial result

Net insurance and investment results
Board of Directors’ remuneration
Other operating expenses - net

Profit for the year before tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year after tax

Basic and diluted earnings after tax per share

Notes

17
18

20

19

19

10
21

31

24

2025 2024
AED000 AED’000
614,840 591,417
(393,421) (522,646)
221,419 68,771
(314,311) (338,713)
126,629 298,563
(187,682) (40,150)
33,737 28,621
19,694 17,036
5,541 716
1,691 1,982
26,926 19,734
(24,268) (18,609)
17,822 13,435
(6,446) (G174
54,217 43,181
(2,160) (1,650)
(3,247) 527
48,810 42,058
(2,833) (3,751)
45,977 38,307
Restated
0.200 0.167

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union Insurance Company P.]J.S.C.

Statement of other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2025

Profit for the year after tax
Other comprehensive income

Irems thar will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

Change in fair value of equity investments held at fair value
through other comprehensive income — net of tax
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000
45,977 38,307
(2) 5

(2) 5
45,975 38,312

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2025

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Gain on disposal of property and equipment

Gain on disposal of investments at FVTPL

Unrealised gain on investments at FVIPL

Interest income

Dividend income

Interest on lease liabilides

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
Change in:

Reinsurance contract assets

Other receivables

Insurance contract liabilities

Other payables

Unit-linked assets

Unit-linked liabilities

Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities
Employees’ end of service indemnity paid

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of propetty and equipment

Purchase of investments held at FVTPL (excluding unit linked assets)
Proceeds from disposal of investments held at FVTPL (excluding unit linked assets)

Interest received
Dividend received

Maturities of fixed deposits with banks with original maturities greater than three

months
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activity
Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activity

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes

20
20
20
20

23

54
5.4

22.2

7.1
7.1

The accompanying notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2025 2024
AED'00 .  AED’000
48,810 42,058
2,952 5,200

- (14,215)
(1,207) 275
(4,333) (716)
(19,696) (17,036)
(2,445) (3,016)
57 147

736 1,762
24,374 14,459
222,241 (87,006)
198 (12,195)
(203,464) 55,036
(8,581) 9,726
17,915 43,981
(18,424) (45,678)
34,759 (21,677)
(4,163) (3,558)
30,596 (25,235)
(285) (586)

- 73,425
(6,216) (4,485)
1,472 30,128
9,387 17,036
2,445 3,016
(19,743)  (114,423)
(12,940) 4,111
(723) (3,241)
(723) (3,241)
16,933 (24,365)
13,920 38,285
30,853 13,920
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2025

1. General information

Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C. (the "Company") is incorporated as a public shareholding company and operates in
the United Arab Emirates (“UAE”) under a trade license issued by the Government of Dubai. The Company is registered
under the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021 (as amended), relating to commetrcial companies. The Company is
subject to the regulations of the U.A.E. Federal Law No. (6) of 2025. The Company is registered with the Insurance
Companies Register of the Central Bank of the UAE (“CBUAE”) under registration number 67. The Company's
registered cotporate office is at Single Business Towet, Sheikh Zayed Road, P.O. Box 119227, Dubai, United Arab
Emirates ("UAE"). The Company’s ordinaty shares ate listed on the Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (“ADX?”).

The principal activity of the Company is the writing of insurance of all types including life assurance. The Company
operates through its Head Office in Dubai and Branch Offices in Abu Dhabi, Dubai, Shatjah, Ajman, and Ras Al
Khaimah. This financial information has been prepared in accordance with the requitements of the applicable laws and
regulations, including the UAE Federal Decree Law No. (32) of 2021 (as amended).

During the year, Federal Decree Law No. (6) of 2025 was issued, effective 16 September 2025, repealing Federal Decree
Law No. (48) of 2023. Pursuant to Article 184 of Federal Decree Law No. (6) of 2025, the Company has a petiod of one
year from the effective date to align its operations and governance framework with the requitements of the new legislation.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the Federal Dectee Law No. (6) of 2025 and will implement any
necessary changes within the permitted transition petiod.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial insttuments that have
been measured at revalued amounts, amortised cost or fair value and the provision for employees’ end of service
indemnity, which is calculated in line with UAE labour laws.

21 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepated in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). and in compliance with the applicable requirements
of the United Arab Emirates (UAE) Federal Decree Law No. 32 of 2021 (as amended) (“Companies Law™), relating
to commercial companies and United Arab Emirates (UAE) Federal Law No. (6) of 2025.

2.2 Going concern

The validity of the going concern assumptions is dependent upon future operations and ability of the Company to generate
sufficient cash flows to meet its future obligations. The Company has sufficient cash balances as of 31 December 2025
and future plans indicate that the Company will be profitable and will generate sufficient cash flows.

The Company’s directors are, therefore, confident that the Company will be able to meet its liabilities as and when they
fall due and to catry on its business without a significant curtailment of operations. Accordingly, these financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern,
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
2.3 Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
231 New and revised IFRSs and interpretations applied on the financial statements

The following relevant standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards were issued by the IASB:

Standard number Title Effective date

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of exchangeability Sale or Contribution of
A Assets between an Investor and its Associate of Joint Venture 1 January 2025

These standards did not have a matetial impact on these financial statements.

2.3.2 Standards issued but not yet effective

The impact of the new standards, interpretations and amendments that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the
date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standard humber Title Effective date

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 7 Financial
IFRS 9 & IFRS 7 Instruments: Disclosures regarding the classification and measurement 1 January 2026
of financial instruments

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosutres 1 January 2027
3. Material accounting policy information

Insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held

Insurance contracts ate contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from a policyholder by
agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. In
making this assessment, all substantive rights and obligations, including those arising from law ot regulation, are
considered on a contract-by-contract basis. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant
insurance risk, by comparing benefits payable aftet an insured event with benefits payable if the insured event did not
occut.
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Union Insurance Company P.]J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held (continued)

Level of aggregation

Level of aggregation relates to the unit of account. The unit of account is referred to as a ‘Group of Contracts’ and
requirements relating to level of aggregation define how groups of contracts have to be determined.

The standatd has set out the following requirements to determine a group of contracts:

- Portfolio — contracts that have similar risks and that are managed together can be grouped.
- Profitability — contracts with similar expected profitability (at inception ot initial recognition) can be grouped.

For this purpose, the standard has mandated at least the following three classifications however it is permitted to use
more granular classifications:

- Contracts that are onerous at inception;
- Contracts that are not onerous and have no significant possibility of becoming onerous; and

- All other contracts
Cohorts

Contracts issued morte than 12 months apart cannot be grouped together. Howevet, in certain circumstances a one-
time simplification upon transition for contracts as at the transition is allowed.

A unique combination of the above three requirements forms a group of contracts i.e., contracts with same portfolio,
same expected profitability and issued in the same year can be grouped together. This grouping is permanent and
cannot be changed once assigned, regardless of how the actual experience emerges after initial recognition. For
instance, as expetience emerges an entity may realise that a contract which was thought to be onerous at initial
recognition is not onerous, but the grouping will not be changed.

Contract boundary

The Company includes in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts all the future cash flows within the
boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance contract if they atise from
substantive tights and obligations that exist duting the reporting year in which the Company can compel the
policyholder to pay the premiums, or in which the Company has a substantive obligation to provide the policyholder
with services.

A substantive obligation to provide services ends when:

*  The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular policyholder and, as a result, can set a
ptice or level of benefits that fully reflects those risks; or

Both of the following critetia are satisfied:

*  The Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio of insurance contracts that contain the
contract and, as a result, can set a price ot level of benefits that fully reflects the risk of that portfolio; and

*  The pricing of the premiums for coverage up to the date when the risks are reassessed does not take into account
the rsks that relate to years after the reassessment date.

A liability or asset relating to expected premiums or claims outside the boundary of the insurance contract is not
recognised. Such amounts relate to future insurance contracts.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)

Insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held (continued)

Recognition

Recognition requirements ate slightly different for issued contracts and held contracts. For groups of issued
contracts, a group should be recognised at the eatliest of the following:

- Beginning of the coverage petiod,
- Date when the first payment from a policyholder becomes due; and
- For a group of onerous contracts, when the group becomes onetous.

Reinsurance contracts held by an entity are tecognised on the eatlier of:

- Beginning of the coverage period of the group of teinsurance contracts held; and
- Date the entity recognises an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts provided the reinsurance contract

was in force on or before that date.

Regardless of the first point above, the recognition of proportional reinsurance contracts held shall be delayed until
the recognition of the first underlying contract issued under that reinsurance contract.

Measurement models

Measurement model, in rudimentary terms, refers to the basis or a set of methodologies for the computation of
insurance contract assets and liabilities and associated revenues and expenses. IFRS 17 has provided the following

three measurement models:
Premium Allocation Approach (“PA4”)

PAA is an optional simplification that an entity can apply to conttracts that have a coverage period of up to 12 months
or to contracts for which it can demonstrate that the liability for temaining coverage will not be materially different
under PAA and GMM. In terms of computations, the major simplification relates to LRC.

Under PAA, it is not required to consider each component of the premium separately instead a single liability can be
set up. The components of liability under PAA as at any valuation date can be summatised as follows:

Liability for Remaining Coverage (“LRC”)
- Excluding Loss Component
- Loss Component, if any

Liability for Incurted Claims (“LIC”)
- Estimates of future cashflows
- Risk adjustment
- Discounting of estimates of future cashflows

All of the Company’s short-term business is eligible for this simplification and the Company has adopted this
simplification for the eligible business. Under PAA, loss component and claim reserves requires an explicit provision
of risk adjustment this would increase the liabilities whereas discounting will generally dectease the liabilities.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2025

3 Material accounting policy information (continued)
Insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held (continued)

General Measurement Model (“GMM?™)

GMM is the default measurement model and is applied to all contracts to which Premium Allocation Approach
("PAA”) and Variable Fees Approach (“VFA”) are not applied. GMM is based on the premise that premiums (ot
considerations) for insurance contracts comprises of certain components (such claims, expenses and profits) and
that each component needs to be considered according to its nature. The liability under GMM as at any valuation
date comprises of the following;

Liability for Remaining Coverage (“LRC”)

- Estimates of future cashflows

- Risk adjustment

- Discounting of estimates of future cashflows
- Contractual Setvice Margin (“CSM”)

Liability for Incurred Claims (“LIC™)

- Estimates of future cashflows
- Risk adjustment
- Discounting of estimates of future cashflows

Variable Fees Approach (“VFA”)

VFA is a mandatory modification to contracts with direct participation features. A contract is a contract with ditect
patticipation feature if it meets all thtee of the following requirements:

® Contractual terms specify that the policyholder participates in a share of a clearly identified pool of underlying
items.

® The entity expects to pay to the policyholder an amount equal to a substantial share of the fair value retutns on
the underlying items.

" The entity expects a substantial proportion of any change in the amounts to be paid to the policyholder to vary
with the change in the fair value of the undetlying items.

The components of the liability under VFA are same as GMM and their calculations are quite similar too except for
the computation of CSM. Under VFA, CSM calculations reflect the variability related to underlying items, but GMM
does not reflect this variability. Similarly, there are some other aspects related to financial risk that impact the CSM

under VFA but not under GMM.
The measurement models have been discussed above ate in context of insutance conttacts issued and associated

liabilities, but same principles ate applicable to reinsurance contract held and associated assets (except for VFA).
Similarly, both LRC and LIC components are mentioned however, at initial recognition only LRC is applicable.

Company’s unit-linked business is measured using VFA, all other long-term business is measured using GMM.
Estimates of future cashflows

The standard tequires that future cashflows should be estimated tll the end of the contract boundaty. End of contract
boundary is defined as the point at which an entity can either reassess the risk or consideration i.e., premium. The standard
does not provide the methodology for the estimation of futute cashflows however, it does provide detailed guidance on
the cashflows that ate within and beyond the contract boundary. It also provides certain principles in relation to the
estimates of future cashflows.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held (continued)

Discounting

The standard requires the estimates of future cashflows should be discounted to reflect the effect of time value of
money and financial risks. Similar to other provisions it does not specify a methodology for discounting or the
derivation of discount rates, however, it sets out certain principles. The standard does recognise the following two
apptoaches for the detivation of the discount rates:

- Bottom-Up: An approach where a risk-free rate ot yield curve is used and an illiquidity premium is added to
reflect the characteristics of the cashflows.

- Top-Down: An approach where the expected yield on a reference portfolio is used and adjustments ate applied
to reflect the differences between the liability cashflow characteristics and the characteristics of the reference
portfolio.

For cashflows that are linked to the underlying items for contracts with direct participation features, the discount

rates must be consistent with other estimates used to measure insurance contracts. The above two approaches may
have to be adjusted to reflect the vatiability in the undetlying items for such cashflows.

Contractual Service Margin (“CSM”)

Contractual Service Margin (CSM) represents the unearned profit the entity will recognise as it provides insurance
contract services in the future. At initial recognition CSM is computed using the fulfillment cash flows (FCF) wheteas at
subsequent measurement CSM is computed using the opening CSM balance and various adjustments relating to the
period. A portion of CSM is released to Profit & Loss as revenue in every period using coverage units.

Onerous contracts and loss components

When a group of contracts, whether at initial recognition ot subsequently, is or becomes onerous a loss component
liability must be maintained. Under GMM and VFA this liability is implicitly included in the FCFs for LRC but for
PAA an explicit loss component over the base LRC must be computed and set aside.

Revenue recognition

Insurance revenue and reinsurance expenses — methods and assumptions used in the determination of the contractual
service margin (CSM) to be recognised in statement of profit or loss for the insurance contract services provided ot

received in the year.

For contracts measured under the General Measurement Model (GMM) in which the Company has discretion over the
cash flows to be paid to the policyholders, judgement might be involved in the determination of what the Company
considers its commitment on initial recognition of such contracts. Further, judgement might be required to distinguish
subsequent changes in the fulfilment cash flows (FCF) resulting from changes in the Company’s commitment and those
resulting from changes in assumptions that relate to the financial tisk on that commitment.

Insurance service expenses

Insurance service expenses include the following:

* incurred claims for the year
* other incurred directly attributable expenses
* insurance acquisition cash flow expenses.

An element of time value of money of LIC for the year.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held (continued)
Insurance acquisition costs

Insurance acquisition cash flows are the costs that are directly associated with selling, underwriting and statrting a
group of insurance contracts (issued or expected to be issued) and that are directly attributable to a portfolio of
insurance contracts, Directly attributable expenses are the costs that can be fully or partially atttibuted to the
fulfilment of groups of insurance contracts. The Company allocates the attributable costs based on a number of
drivers. Both acquisition and atttibutable costs fall under the insurance service expenses. While non-atttibutable
costs are reported under other operating expenses.

Finance income or expenses from insurance contracts issued

Insurance finance income or expenses Insurance finance income ot expenses comprise the change in the cattying
amount of the group of insurance contracts atising from:

®  Interest accreted on the CSM;

e Interest accreted on the PAA LRC excluding the LC (if adjusted for the financing effect);

®  The financing effect on the LC measured under the PAA (if adjusted for the financing effect);

®  The effect of changes in FCFs at current rates, when the corresponding CSM unlocking is measured at the
locked in rates;

®  Any interest charged to or added to insurance / reinsurance asset or liability balances; and

®  The effect of changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions,

For all groups of contracts, the Company disaggregates insurance finance income or expenses for the petiod
between profit or loss and other comprehensive income (that is, the OCI option is applied). The finance income
and expenses from insurance contracts issued recognised in the statement of profit or loss reflects the unwind of
the liabilities at the locked-in rates. The remaining amount of finance income and expenses from insurance contracts
issued for the period is recognised in OCI.

Key Accounting Policy Choices

IFRS 17 requires Company to make vatious accounting policy choices. The key accounting policy choices made by the
Company are desctibed below.

granular cohort

Accounting Policy Company Decision
Level of Aggregation — | Company adopted the minimum three classifications provided in the standard and
Adopting more not use more granular classifications.
granular profitability
Level of Aggregation —
Adopting more Company is using annual cohotts and not shorter cohorts.

PAA — Deferring
insurance acquisition
cashflows

Under PAA, in some circumstances, it is allowed to recognise insurance acquisition
cashflows as expense when incurred however, the Company does not apply this
choice instead it defers all insurance acquisition cashflows.

PAA — Discounting LIC

Under PAA, in some circumstances, it is allowed not to discount the LIC, but
Company is not using this option and discounts all LIC.

Interest Accretion —
OCI Option

The standard allows that finance expense to be split between QCI, and P&L.
Company has opted to reflect entire finance expense in the P&L and not to split
between OCI and P&L.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Other revenue recognition
(a) Interest income

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument, except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (or stage 3), for which interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their
amortised cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss provision) and are recognised within ‘interest income’ in the
statement of profit or loss.

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the Company’s right to
receive dividend has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

(¢) Reinsurance commission earned

Commissions earned are recognised fully at the time the related insurance contracts are written.
Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

Ttems included in the financial statements of the Company ate measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Company’s financial statements are
presented in United Arab Emirates Dirham (“AED”), which is the Company’s functional and presentation cuttency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year-end exchange rates, are generally
tecognised in the statement of profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of
profit or loss, within “Administrative expenses™.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined, Translation differences on assets and liabilities cartied at fair value are
tepotted as part of the fair value gain ot loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit ot loss ate recognised in profit ot loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss, and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in statement of other comprehensive income.
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Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Segment reporting

Fot management purposes, the Company is organised into two business segments based on their products and setvices
and has two business segments as follows:

(@) The general insurance segment comprises of property, fite, marine, motor, medical, general accident and
miscellaneous risks.

(b) The life assurance segment offers short term and long-term life insurance. Revenue from this segment is derived
primarily from insurance premium, fees and commission income, investment income and fair value gains and
losses on investments.

No opetating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments. Segment performance
is evaluated based on profit or loss which, in certain respects, is measured differently from profit ot loss in the financial
statements. No infer-segment transactions occurred duting the year ended 31 December 2025 and 2024. If any
transaction were to occur, transfer prices between operating segments would be set on an arm’s length basis in a
manner similar to transactions with third parties.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

‘The two operating segments i.e. General Insurance and Life Insurance segments, organised under two Presidents who
report into the Chief Executive Officer. The Board and its various committees have oversight on the overall
operations of the company.

Property and equipment

Propetty and equipment comprises of freehold land, furniture and fixture, office equipment, motor vehicles, computer
equipment and capital work in progtess.

Property and equipment is carried at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation any recognised impairment loss.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. These assets ate
classified to the approptiate categosies of property and equipment when completed and ready for theit intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property and equipment, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as apptoptiate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance ate charged to the statement of profit or loss during
the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Capital work in progress is stated at the lower of cost ot net realisable value. The cost includes the cost of construction
and other related expenditure which ate capitalised as and when activities that are necessaty to get the assets ready for
use are in progress. Net realisable value represents the estimated recoverable value based on expected future usage.
Management reviews the carrying values of the capital work in progress on an annual basis.

Capital wotk in progress are considered to be completed when all related activities, for the entire assets have been
completed. Upon completion, those are transferred to property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss atising on detrecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive income
in the year the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Property and equipment (continued)

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for separately
is capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other subsequent expenditure
is capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of property and equipment. All other
expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as the expense is incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets, other than capital work in progress, over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The useful life considered in calculation of depreciation for all the assets is as follows:
® Office equipment & computer equipment - 5 yeats

® Motor vehicles - 4 years

® Furniture and fixtures - 12 years

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including software and license fee for access to know how.

(a) Software
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incutred.

Development costs that ate directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Company ate recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

Thete is an ability to use or sell the software product;

It can be demonstrated how the software product will genetate probable future economic benefits;

Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software
product are available; and

® The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Ditectly attributable costs that ate capitalised as part of the software product include the software development
employee costs and an apptroptiate portion of directly attributable overheads.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful lives considered in the

calculation of amortisation is 5 years.
(b) License know how

Licenses know how is shown at historical cost. It has a definite useful life and is carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost license
over their estimated useful lives i.e. 5 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2025

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)

Leases

The Company leases office premises. Rental contract of the leases range from 1 to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreement does not
impose any covenants, but leased assets cannot be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability within “Insurance and other payables™ at
the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to statement of profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over shorter of the asset’s useful life or the lease term on 2 straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from 2 lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
ptesent value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

® amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; and

® payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to botrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and
conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

¢ the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

® any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
® any initial direct costs; and

® restoration costs.

Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the catrying amount of the undetlying asset
and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.

Extension and termination options

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
to exercise an extension option ot not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods aftet termination
options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

For buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant.

o  if there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend
(ot not terminate);

® if any leaschold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company is typically
reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate); and

® otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business
distuption requited to replace the leased asset.

The assessment is reviewed whether a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects
this assessment and that is within the control of the lessee. Termination option is included in the propetty lease of the
Company. This option held is exercisable by the Company and the lessor. Payments associated with short-term leases
of premises are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in statement of profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease tetm of 12 months or less without a purchase option.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are apptroved by the Company’s shareholders.

Financial instruments
(a) ITnvestments and other financial assets

() Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categoties:
e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss), and
® those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows. For assets measured at fait value, gains and losses will either be recorded in statement of profit or
loss ot statement of other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that ate not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial tecognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the “trade date”, ie. the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
matketplace. Financial assets ate derecognised when the tights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transfetred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss. Financial assets
with embedded detivatives are considered in their entitety when determining whether their cash flows ate solely
payment of principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow charactetistics of the asset. Thete are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its
debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of ptincipal and interest ate measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in ptofit or loss and presented in ‘Net investment income/ (loss)’ together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses atre included within ‘Net investment income/(loss)’ in the statement of profit or
loss.

® FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVIPL is recognised in the income statement and is
presented net within ‘Net investment income’ in the period in which it arises.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
(a)  Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(i11) Measurement (continued)

e FVTOCL Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses, which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain ot loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit ot loss
and recognised in ‘Net investment income’. Interest income from these financial assets is calculated using the
effective interest rate method. Foteign exchange gains and losses are presented in ‘Net investment income’.

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except where the Company’s management
has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at FVTOCIL. The Company’s policy is
to designate equity investments at FVTOCI when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate
investment returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit ot loss, including on disposal. Dividends, when representing a return on such
investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as “Net investment income / (loss)” when the Company’s
right to receive payments is established.

The unit-linked assets include investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products, financial assets
from reinsurer towards policyholders of unit linked products contracts and cash held on behalf of policyholdets.
Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked products and financial assets from reinsurer towards
policyholders of unit linked products conttacts ate accrued to the account of the contract holder at the fair value of
the net gains arising from the underlying linked assets. All these contracts are designated as at fair value through profit
ot loss and were designated in this category upon initial recognition. Cash held on behalf of policyholders atre
designated as amortised cost investment designated in this category upon initial recognition.

Impairment and nncollectibility of financial assets

The Company assesses the collectability of its financial assets based on its credit policy and default events. Refer to
(b) below for impairment of insurance and other receivables.

(b)  Insurance and other receivables
Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets catried at
amottised cost and debt instruments classified as FVOCI. Assets migrate through the three stages based on the change
in credit quality since initial recognition.

Overview

The Company is recording the allowance for expected credit losses for debt financial assets not held at FVIPL. Equity
instruments are not subject to impairment under IFRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected
credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the
allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss (“12mECL”). The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that
represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months

after the reporting date.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Insurance and other receivables (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Overview (continued)

The Company has established a policy to petform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a
financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the
risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Company categotizes its FVOCI assets into stages as described below:

Stage 1: When financial instruments are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 month
ECLs. Stage 1 also include financial instruments where the credit risk has improved and the has been
reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 22 When a financial instrument has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company
records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs. Stage 2 also include insttuments, where the credit tisk has
improved, and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date, For these assets,
lifetime ECL are recognised and treated, along with the interests calculated. When transitioning financial
assets from stage 2 to stage 3, the petcentage of provision made for such assets should not be less than the
percentage of provision made before transition. Purchased or originated credit impaired assets are financial
assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition and ate recorded at fair value at original recognition
and interest income is subsequently recognised based on a credit adjusted EIR. ECLs ate only recognised
or released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entite outstanding
amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a
(partial) derecognition of the financial asset. The accounts which are restructured due to credit reasons in past 12
months will be classified under stage 2.

The calculation of ECLs

The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenatios to measure the expected cash shortfalls,
discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to
an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive. The mechanics of the
ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

® The Probability of Default ("PD") is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time hotizon.

® The Exposute at Default ("EAD ") is an estimate of the exposute at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date.

® The Loss Given Default ("LGD") is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given
time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that are expected to receive,
including from the realisation of any collateral.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses or gains that are
accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset's gross catrying value. The mechanics of the ECL method are
summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12 month ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that tesult from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the repotting date. The
Company calculates the 12 month ECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12
months following the reporting date. These expected 12-month default probabilities ate applied to a forecast
EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original EIR.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
(b) Insurance and other receivables (continned)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The calculation of ECLs (continued)

Stage 2: When a financial asset has shown a significant increase in credit tisk since origination, the Company recotds
an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are
estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an
approximation to the original EIR.

Stage 3: For financial asset consideted credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime expected credit losses
for these financial assets. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in
the statement of financial position, which remains at fait value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would
arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as an accumulated
impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognised in other
comptehensive income is recycled to the profit or loss upon derecognition of the assets.

Forward looking information

The Company, for forward looking information, relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic
inputs, such as:

e GDP growth
e Qil prices

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the matket at the date
of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as temporaty
adjustments when such differences are significantly material.

(¢) Financial liabilities

The Company recognises a financial liability when it first becomes a party to the contractual rights and obligations in
the contract.

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, minus (in the case of a financial liability that is not at FVIPL)
transaction costs that are directly attributable to issuing the financial liability. Financial labilities are measured at
amortised cost, unless the Company opted to measure a liability at FVTPL.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Financial liabilities included in insurance and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at
amortised cost. The fair value of a non-interest-bearing liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the due date
of the liability is less than one year, discounting is omitted.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
(¢c) Financial liabilities (continned)

Offseiting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is repotted in the statement of financial position
if, and only if, there is a cutrently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense will not be
offset in the statement of profit or loss unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, as
specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Company.

(d)  Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other shott-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months ot less
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value less overdrafts with banks. Bank overdrafts are shown within liabilities in the statement of financial position.

(8} Bank deposits with banks with original maturities of more than three months

Deposits held with banks with otiginal maturities of more than three months are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measuted at amottised cost.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impaitment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its tecovetable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is wtitten down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.

These calculations ate cotroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators. Impairment losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company makes an
estimate of the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if thete
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That
increased amount cannot exceed the cattying amount that would have been determined, net of amottisation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Provisions

Provisions ate recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and 2 reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Whete
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Income tax

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to
income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted ot substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax
assets and liabilities are offset only if cettain ctiteria are met.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation putposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

° Temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting not taxable profit or loss and does not give tise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences;

o temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaties, associates and joint arrangements to the extent
that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

° taxable temporaty differences atising on the initial tecognition of goodwill.

Defertred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax is measured at the
tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary difference when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. The measurement
of defetred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the repotting date, to recovet or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Employees’ end of service benefits

The Company provides end-of-service benefits to its expattiate employees in accordance with the UAE Labor Law,

The entitlement to these benefits is based upon the employees' salary and the length of service, subject to the
completion of a minimum setvice period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of

employment.

Defined contribution plan for UAE national emplovees

The Company is a member of the pension scheme operated by the Federal Pension General and Social Security
Authority. Contributions for eligible UAE National employees are made and charged to the statement of profit or
loss, in accordance with the provisions of Federal Law No. 7 of 1999 relating to pension and Social Security Law. The
employees and the Government contribute 5% and 2.5% of the “contribution calculation salary” respectively, to the
scheme. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the retitement pension and social security scheme is to
make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to statement of profit or loss.

An accrual has been made for the past contributions relating to the services rendered by the eligible UAE National
employees up to 31 December 2025. The Company has no farther payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the possibility of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial
statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Related parties
A related party is defined as follows:

(2) A person ot a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person:
{) Has control or joint control over the Company;
(i) Has significant influence over the Company; or
(iif) Is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a patent of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Company are members of the same Company (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate ot joint venture of a member of
a Company of which the other entity is a member),

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

{iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity, and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Company or an entity
related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Company;

(vi) The entity is conttolled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (2) (i} has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (ot of a parent of the entity).

30



Union Insurance Company P.]J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

3. Material accounting policy information (continued)
Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of equity insttuments ate shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
ate considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the petiod in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the petiod of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both cutrent and future periods. The sensitivities for life insurance
conttacts are disclosed in note 28.

Significant areas where management has used estimates, assumptions or exetcised judgements are as follows:
Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTOCI is
an atea that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit
behavior (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses).

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such
as:

. Determining the criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

. Determining the ctiteria and definition of default;

. Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL; and
. Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Estimates of future cash flows to fulfill insurance contracts

Included in the measurement of each group of contracts within the scope of IFRS 17, are all future cash flows within the
boundaty of each group of contracts. The estimates of these future cash flows are based on probability-weighted expected
future cash flows which includes the expected premium receipts and ultimate cost of claims. The ultimate cost of claims
is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection techniques, such as Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-
Ferguson methods.

The main assumption undetlying these techniques is that a Company’s past claims development expetience can be used
to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. These methods extrapolate the development of
paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim (including claims handling costs), and claim numbers based on the
obsetved development of eatlier years and expected loss ratios. Large claims are usually separately addressed, either by
being resetved at the face value of loss adjuster estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their future

development.

In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the
assumptions used are those implicit in the historical claims development data on which the projections are based.
Additional qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g., to reflect
one-off occurtences as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy features and claims handling procedutes) in
otdet to attive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims. The Company also has the right to pursue third parties for payment
of some or all costs. Estimates of salvage recoveries and subrogation reimbursements are considered as an allowance in
the measurement of ultimate claims costs.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty (continued)
Assessment of significance of insurance risk

The Company applies its judgement in assessing whether a contract transfers to the issuer significant insurance risk. A
contract transfers significant insurance tisk only if an insured event could cause the Company to pay additional amounts
that are significant in any single scenario and only if thete is a scenario that has commercial substance in which the issuer
has a possibility of a loss on a present value basis upon an occurrence of the insured event, regardless of whether the
insured event is extremely unlikely.

Risk adjustment

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the Company requires for beating the uncettainty
about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of insurance contracts. The risk adjustment reflects an amount
that an insurer would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that future cash flows will exceed the expected value amount.

The Company has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of sufficiency) approach at the 75th
percentile, That is, the Company has assessed its indifference to uncertainty for all product lines (as an indication of the
compensation that it requires for bearing non-financial risk) as being equivalent to the 75th percentile confidence level less
the mean of an estimated probability distribution of the future cash flows. The Company has estimated the probability
distribution of the future cash flows, and the additional amount above the expected present value of futute cash flows
required to meet the target percentiles.

Onerous groups

The Company uses significant judgement to determine at what level of granularity the Company has reasonable and
supportable information that is sufficient to conclude that all contracts within a set are sufficiently homogeneous and will
be allocated to the same group without performing an individual contract assessment.

Discounting

The Company adjusts the cartying amount of the insurance contracts liabilities and teinsurance contracts assets to reflect
the time value of money and the effect of financial tisk using discount rates that reflect the characteristics of the cash flows
of the group of contracts.

Discount rates applied for discounting of future cash flows from insurance and reinsurance contracts are listed below:

1year 3 years 5 years 10 years
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Discount rate used 4.55% 6.04%  4.62% 6.15% 4.81%  6.26%  5.31% 6.49%

Under the bottom-up approach, the discount rate is determined as the risk-free yield, adjusted for differences in liquidity
characteristics between the financial assets used to derive the risk-free yield and the relevant liability cash flows (known as
an ‘illiquidity premium’). The risk-free curve itself will either be derived by the Company from risk-free assets in the market,
or the Company may choose to apply a published risk-free yield curve. The top-down approach starts with the
determination of a reference portfolio. The reference portfolio yield will be taken as the yield on the undetlying items to
which the liability cashflows are linked.
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5. Investment securities and unit linked assets

Investment securities comptise the following:

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

AED’000 AED000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (5.1) 57,347 47,062

Financial assets at fait value through other comprehensive income (5.2) 27 29

57,374 47,091

Unit linked assets (5.3) 341,261 359,176
5.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Asat Asat

31 December 31 Decembet

2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Quoted equity securities in U.A.E. 54,539 42,286

Quoted equity secutities outside U.A.E. 674 535

Quoted bonds in U.A.E. 1,830 2,762

Ungquoted equity securities outside U.A.E. 56 127

Unquoted equity securities in U.A.E. 248 1,352

Fair value at the end of the year 57,347 47,062

Investments classified at fair value through profit or loss are designated in this category upon initial recognition.

The bonds catty interests at the rates of 3.86% to 4.88% (31 December 2024: 3.70% to 6.05%) per annum. There ate no
significant concentrations of credit tisk to a single counter party for debt instruments and the carrying amount reflected
above represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for such assets.

5.2 Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Quoted equity securities in U.AE. 27 29
27 29

Investments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income are designated in this category upon initial
recognition.

During the year ended 31 December 2025, the Company did not dispose any equity investments held at fair value through
othet comprehensive income (31 December 2024: Nil) in line with the Company’s investment strategy.
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5.  Investment securities and unit linked assets (continued)

5.3 Unit linked assets

Asat As at
31 December 31 December
2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000
Investments held on behalf of policyholders of unit linked
products cartied at FVIPL 167,300 203360
Financial assets due from reinsurer towatds policyholders
of unitlinked products castied at FVTPL 25 142,8%
Cash.held on beh_a.lf of policyholders of unit linked products 13,179 12.320
carried at amortised cost ’
341,261 359,176
5.4 Movement in the financial investments
FVIPL FVTOCI Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
At 1 January 2024 72,264 24 72,288
Purchases 4,385 - 4,385
Disposals (30,028) - (30,028)
Changes in fair value 716 5 721
Realised gain (275) - (275)
As at 31 December 2024 47,062 29 47,091
Purchases 9,825 - 9,825
Disposals (5,080) - (5,080)
Changes in fair value 4,333 (2) 4,331
Realised gain 1,207 - 1,207
As at 31 December 2025 57,347 27 57,374

6.  Statutory deposit

The statutoty deposit of AED 10 million (31 December 2024: AED 10 million) is requited to be placed by insurance
companies operating in the U.A.E. with the designated national banks. This deposit has been pledged to the bank as
secutity against a guarantee issued by the bank in favour of the CBUAE for the same amount.

Statutory deposits, which depend on the nature of insurance activities, cannot be withdrawn except with the ptior approval
of the CBUAE in accordance with Atticle 92 of Federal Decree Law No. (6) of 2025.
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7. Cash and cash equivalents

As at Asat

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

AED’000 AED000

Cash on hand 35 35

Bank balances:

Current accounts with banks 30,818 13,885
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the

statement of cash flows 30,853 13,920

In UAE 29,449 13,920

QOutside UAE 1,404 &

30,853 13,920

Thete ate no bank deposits with original maturities of three months or less as of 31 December 2025. (2024: AED
Nil).

7.1  Bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

AED’000 AED000

Deposits with original maturities greatet than three months 439,045 408,993
In UAE. 439,045 408,599
Outside U.AE. - 394
439,045 408,993

Bank deposits carried interest rates ranging from 3.5% to 4.5% per annum (31 December 2024: 2.5% to 6% per annum).

Bank deposits of AED 45 million (31 December 2024: AED 45 million) have been pledged as security against the credit
facility which is to manage the liquidity position.

The Company has obtained overdrafts facilities from commercial banks in the UAE amounting to AED 25 million (31
December 2024: AED 25 million) which carry interest rate of 1% per annum above the highest interest rate payable on
fixed deposits under lien for the overdraft facility; or as varied by notice in writing received from the bank from time to
time. Unused credit facilities amounted to AED 25 million (31 December 2024: AED 25 million).
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8.  Share capital

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000
Issued and fully paid 230,000,000 shares of AED 1 each
(31 December 2024: 330,939,180 share of AED 1 each) 230,000 330,939

During the year, the shareholders of the Company approved a reduction in the statutory reserve (Note 9.1), special
reserve (Note 9.2) and share capital of 30.50% with equivalent to 100,939,180 shares out of the Company’s total
330,939,000 issued shares. This resolution was passed at the annual general meeting held on 21 April 2025, and the
capital reduction was subsequently approved by all relevant regulatory authorities.

9. Reserves
9.1 Statutory reserve

In accordance with the UAE Federal Law 32 of 2021, the Company is required to transfer 10% of the annual profits up to
50% of paid-up capital. The Company transfers 10% of the profits at the end of the year to the statutoty reserve. The
Company transferred AED 4,598 thousand during the year ended 31 December 2025 (2024: AED 3,831 thousand). The
reserve is not available for distribution except in the circumstances stipulated by the law.

During the yeat, an amount of AED 19,956 thousand was released from the statutory reserve to offset the Company’s
accumulated losses. This resolution was passed during the shareholders annual general meeting held of 21 April 2025.

(Note 8).

9.2 Special reserve

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors may transfer 10% of annual net profits,
if any, to a special reserve until an Ordinary Genetal Meeting upon a proposal suspends it. The special reserve can be
utilized for the purposes determined by the Ordinary General Meeting upon recommendations of the Boatd of Director.
During the yeat, the shareholders approved to amend the articles of association of the Company to remove the requirement
to transfer 10% of annual net profits. Accordingly, an amount of AED 21,851 thousand was released from the special
reserve to offset the Company’s accumulated losses. This resolution was passed during the shareholders annual general
meeting held of 21 April 2025. (Note 8)

9.3  Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comptises the cumulative net change in fair value of financial assets designated as fair value through
other comprehensive income.

9.4 Reinsurance reserve

In accordance with Article 34 of the UAE Central Boatd of Ditectors Decision No. (23) of 2019, the Company has
transferred AED 1,641 thousand from the ‘Accumulated losses’ to the ‘Reinsurance teserve’ being 0.5% of the total
insurance premium ceded to reinsurers during the year ended 31 December 2025 (year ended 31 December 2024: AED
1,749 thousand). The Company shall accumulate such provision year on year and shall not dispose of the reserve without
the written approval of the director general within the CBUAE.
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10.  Related party balances and transactions

The Company, in the normal course of business, collects premiums, settles claims and enters into transactions with other
business enterprises that fall within the definition of a telated party as defined by Intetnational Accounting Standard 24,
Related parties include the Company’s major Shareholders, Ditectots and businesses conttolled by them and their families
over which they exercise significant management influence as well as key management personnel. The Company’s
management believes that the terms of such transactions are not significantly different from those that could have been
obtained from third parties.

At the end of the reporting year, amounts due from/ (to) telated parties which are included in the tespective account
balances ate detailed below:

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2025 2024
AED’000 AED000
Balances with entities related to Board members
Gross outstanding claims (included in insurance contract liabilities) 17 450
Fixed deposits 80,631 197,009
Bank account 1,220 5,100
Balances with former major shareholder
Insurance premium receivable (netted from insurance contract liability) 26,603 26,603
Provision for expected credit losses (26,360) (26,360)
Net 243 243
Investment properties reclassified to “Advance paid for purchase of real
estate properties” 72,270 72,270
Reversal of net fair value gains recorded in prior years (35,770) (35,770)
Advance paid for purchase of real estate propetties™ 36,500 36,500
Provision on advance paid for purchase of real estate properties (36,500) (36,500)

The amounts outstanding are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. No guarantees have been given to the
related parties.

* The amount under the advance paid for real estate properties (AED 36.5 million) was represented as Investment
Properties with a carrying value in the books of AED 72.3 million in the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020. The said asset represents purchased assets from related patties during the years 2013 and 2014, The
purchased assets comprise a 60 residential unit in a single building and a plot of land of 150,000 square feet with integrated
infrastructure. For one of the assets, the agteement was entered in 2013 to purchase 150,000 squate feet of the land, which
was reduced to 56,800 square feet and later amended to 78,900 square feet based on the instruction received from the
former Chairman who was also the representative of the related party.

The countetparties (related parties) to the above transactions never fulfilled their obligations to the Company (the Buyet),
and as a result the Company did not obtain the title deeds nor obtain possession of the said assets. This has resulted in the
incorrect recognition of fair value gains of AED 35.8 million on investment properties in respect of which the Company
never obtained possession or legal title, and the misapproptiation of advances amounting to AED 36.5 million paid to a
related party towards the acquisition of the investment properties. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company
decided to book a full provision (AED 72.3 million) against the said assets and proceed with legal action against all involved
parties, to recover the Company’s tights, in accordance with the resolution of Shareholders Assembly Meeting held on 30

September 2021.
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10. Related party balances and transactions (continued)

During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties:
For the year ended 31 December

2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000
Transactions with entities related to Board members
Insurance contracts issued (included in insurance revenue) 207 267
Claims paid (included in insurance service expenses) 143 112
FD interest income from National Bank of Umm Al Qaiwain
P.S8.C) 3,461 3,505
Bank charges 98 177
Rental paid 550 821
Allocation of reinsurance premium 368 19
Compensation of key management personnel
Short-term benefits (included in insurance setvice expenses) 1,440 1,440
Long-term benefits (included in insurance service expenses) 42 42
Board of Directors’ remuneration 2,160 1,650
11. Contingent liabilities
Asat 31 Asat 31
December December
2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000
Letters of guarantee™* 10,922 10,496

*Includes AED 10 million (31 December 2024: AED 10 million) issued in favor of the CBUAE (Note G).

The Company, in common with the majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. Based
on independent legal advice, the Company considers that the outcome of the outstanding court cases will not have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

12, Unit-linked liabilities

The Company issues unit-linked policies which have both insurance risk and investment components. The investment
pottion is invested on behalf of the policyholders as disclosed in note 5.3 to these financial statements.
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12.  Unit linked liabilities (continued)

Movement during the year:

As at 31 As at 31

December December

2025 2024

AED’000 AED’000

Payables to policyholders’ of unit-linked products 341,261 359,176
Payables classified under insurance contract liabilities* (35,079) (34,570
306,182 324,606

*In accordance with IFRS 17, the liabilities for unit linked policies with significant insurance risk are included within the
calculation of the insurance contract liabilides amounting to AED 35,079 thousand (31 December 2024: 34,570 thousand).

13. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets

The breakdown of groups of insurance and teinsurance contracts issued, and reinsurance contracts held, that are in an asset
position and those in a liability position is set out in the table below:

31 December 2025 31 December 2024
Assets Liabilities Net Assets  Liabilities Net

AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Insurance contracts

issued

Life - 145,495 (145,495) - 145,125 (145,125)
General - 469,847 (469,847) - 673,681 (673,681)
Total insurance contracts

issued . 615,342 (615,342) - 818806 (818,806)

Reinsurance contracts

held

Life 86,102 1,791 84,311 85,652 1,563 84,089
Genetal 303,990 - 303,990 526,681 - 526,681
‘Total reinsurance

contracts held 390,092 1,791 388,301 612,333 1,563 610,770

The roll-forward of the net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued, showing the lability for remaining coverage
and the liability for incurred claims, is disclosed in the next page.
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13. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage

and the liability for incurred claims

Contracts measured under the PAA:

31 December 2025

Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 January
Net Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 January
2025

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition

cash flows

Losses on onerous contracts and reversals
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims

Insurance service result

Insurance finance expenses

Total changes in the statement of
comprehensive income

Cash flows

Premiums received

Claims and other expenses paid

Insurance acquisition cash flows

Total cash flows

Net insurance contract liabilities as at 31

December 2025

31 December 2024
Insurance Contract Liabilides as at 1 Januaty
Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 January 2024

Insurance revenue

Insurance service expenses
Incurred claims and other expenses
Amottisation of insurance acquisition cash

flows

Losses on onerous contracts and reversals
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims

Insurance service result

Insurance finance expenses

Total changes in the statement of comprehensive
income

Cash flows

Premiums received

Claims and other expenses paid

Insurance acquisition cash flows

Total cash flows

Net insurance contract liabilities as at 31

December 2024

Liabilities for remaining

Liabilities for incurred

coverage claims
Estimates of
the present
Excluding loss Loss  value of future Risk
component component cash flows  adjustment Total
AED’000 AED000 AED000 AED’000 AED’000
(24,547) 14,152 660,410 23,666 673,681
(24,547) 14,152 660,410 23,666 673,681
(602,576) - - - (602,576)
- - 529,397 5,708 494,179
49,317 i i ) 49,317
- (14,089) - - (14,089)
- - (170,109) (14,695) (143,878)
(553,259) (14,089) 359,288 (8,987) (217,047)
- - 16,973 25 16,998
(553,259) (14,089) 376,261 (8,962) (200,049)
532,277 - - - 532,278
- - (488,471) - (488,471)
(47,591) - - - (47,591)
487,187 - (488,471) - (3,784)
(93,120) 63 548,200 14,704 469,847
(22,672) 1,500 619,712 22,270 620,810
(22,672) 1,500 619,712 22270 620,810
(578,749) - - - (578,749)
- - 425,102 8,090 433,192
48,644 = - - 48,644
- 12,652 - - 12,652
- - 25,023 (6,684) 18,339
(530,105) 12,652 450,125 1,406 (65,922)
- - 15,675 (10) 15,665
(530,105) 12,652 465,800 1,396 (50,257)
577,878 - - - 577,878
> - (425,102) - (425,102)
(49,648) - - - (49,648)
528,230 - (425,102) - 103,128
(24,547) 14,152 660,410 23,666 673,681
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13. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage
and the liability for incurred claims (continued)

Analysis by measurement component — Contracts not measured under the PAA:

CSM
Contracts
Estimates under
of present Risk modified
value of adjustment for retrospective
future cash  non-financial transition
31 December 2025 flows risk approach Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 January 2025 120,007 12,460 12,658 145,125
Changes that relate to current services
CSM recognised for services provided - - (1,427) (1,427)
Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk
for risk expired ) (643) i (643)
Expetience adjustments (4,137) - - (4,137)
Changes that relate to future services
Contracts initially recognised in the year - - - -
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM 385 (826) 442 1
Changes in estimates that result in losses and
reversals of losses on onerous contracts (210) (169) ) (379)
Changes that relate to past services
Adjustments to liabilities for incutred claims 2,215 - - 2,215
Insurance service result (1,747) (1,638) (985) (4,370)
Net finance expenses from insurance contracts 9,379 239 401 10,019
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss
and OCI 7,632 (1,399) (584) 5,649
Cash flows
Premiums received 6,094 - - 6,094
Claims and other directly attributable expenses paid (11,373) - - (11,373)
Insurance acquisition cash flows paid - - - -
Total cash flows (5,279) - - (5,279)
Net insurance contract liabilities as
at 31 December 2025 122,360 11,061 12,074 145,495
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13. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for insurance contracts issued showing the liability for remaining coverage
and the liability for incurred claims (continued)

Analysis by measurement component — Contracts not measured under the PAA (continued):

CSM
Contracts
Estimates undet
of present modified
value of Risk retrospective
future cash adjustment for transition
31 December 2024 flows non-financial risk approach Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Insurance contract liabilities as at 1 January 116,605 14,129 12,225 142,959
Changes that relate to current services
CSM recognised for services provided = = (1,280) (1,280)
Change in risk adjustment for non-financial - (633) - (633)
Experience adjustments (2,3306) - - (2,336)
Changes that relate to future services
Contracts initially recognised in the year 87 17 10 114
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM (398) (951) 1,349 -
Changes in estimates that result in losses and
treversals of losses on onerous contracts 86 396) - (310)
Changes that relate to past services
Adjustments to liabilities for incutred claims 1,592 - - 1,592
Insurance service result 969) (1,963) 79 (2,853)
Net finance expenses from insurance contracts 3,803 294 354 4,451
Total changes in the statement of profit ot loss 2,834 (1,669) 433 1,598
Cash flows
Premiums received 12,519 - - 12,519
Claims and other directly attributable (11,951) - - (11,951)
expenses paid
Insurance acquisition cash flows paid = - = -
Total cash flows 568 - - 568
Net insurance contract liabilities as at 31
December 2024 120,007 12,460 12,658 145,125
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2025

13. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage

and the amounts recoverable on incurred claims

Contracts measured under the PAA:

Assets for remaining

Amounts recoverable on

coverage incurred claims
Estimates of
the present
Excluding value of
loss tecovery Loss future Risk
31 December 2025 component  component cash flows adjustment Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED000
Reinsurance contract assets as at 1 January 2025 6,079 12,569 487,152 20,881 526,681
An allocation of reinsurance premiums (251,783) (12,569) - - (264,352)
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for
Amounts recoverable for incurred claims _ _ 244,199 3,795 247,994
and other expenses
Loss-recovery on onerous undetlying ) ; } )
contracts and adjustments )
_Changes to amounts recoverable for _ _ (155,090) (13,208) (168,298)
incurred claims
Net income or expense from reinsurance (251,783) (12,569) 89,109 (9,413) (184,656)
Reinsurance finance income - - 11,593 21 11,614
Todl changes fothe stitemeat of (@51,783)  (12,569) 100,702 0392)  (173,042)
comptehensive income
Cash flows
Premiums paid 194,550 - - - 194,550
Amounts received - - (244,199) - (244,199)
Total cash flows 194,550 - (244,199) - {49,649)
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 31 ’
December & B (65) 2 2
zRgér;surance contract assets as at 31 December (51,065) ) 343,590 11,487 304,012
Net reinsurance contract assets as at 31
December 2025 (51,154) - (343,655) (11,489) (303,990)
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13. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage
and the amounts recoverable on incurred claims (continued)

Contracts measured under the PAA (continued):

Assets for remaining Amounts recoverable on
coverage incutred claims
Estimates of
the present
value of
Excluding loss Loss future Risk
31 December 2024 recovery component component cash flows adjustment Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED000 AED’000

Reinsurance contract assets as at 1

January 2024 (35,288) 411 454,548 18,799 438,470
An allocation of reinsurance (276,351) (@11) } ) (276,762)
ptemiums ’ ’

Amounts recovetable from reinsurers
for incurred claims

Amounts recoverable for incurred - - 201,759 6,479 208,238
claims and other expenses

Loss-recovety on onerous undetlying _ 12,569 _ _ 12,569
contracts and adjustments ’
Changes to amounts recoverable for _ - 21,362 (4,388) 16,974
incurred claims

Nerncome: ar epoic i (276,351) 12,158 223,121 2,091 (38,981)
reinsurance contracts held

Reinsurance finance income - - 11,242 €)] 11,233
Texal elaniges inshs staerrneos (276,351) 12,158 234,363 2,082 (27,748)
comprehensive income

Cash flows

Premiums paid 317,718 - - - 317,718
Amounts received - - (201,759) - (201,759)
Total cash flows 317,718 - (201,759) - 115,959
NCI: reinsurance contract assets as at 6’079 12,569 487,152 20,381 526,681

31 December 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2025

13. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage
and the amounts recoverable on incurred claims {continued)

Analysis by measurement component — Contracts not measured under the PAA:

31 December 2025

Net reinsurance contract assets as at 1 January 2025

Changes that relate to current services
CSM recognised for services provided
Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for
Experience adjustments
Changes that relate to future services
Contracts initially recognised in the year
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM
Changes in estimates that relate to losses and
reversals of losses on onerous underlying contracts
Changes that relate to past services
Adjustments to assets for incurred claims
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts
Net finance income from reinsurance contracts
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and
OCI
Cash flows
Premiums received
Claims and other ditectly attributable expenses paid
Total cash flows
Reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December 2025
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 31 December 2025

Net reinsurance contract assets as
at 31 December 2025

CSM
Contracts
Estimates under
of present Risk modified
value of adjustment for retrospective
future cash  non-financial transition
flows risk approach Total
AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED000
78,160 3,944 1,985 84,089
- - (475) (475)
- (452) - (452)
(4,003) - - (4,003)
(1,357) 48) 1,404 )
(405) 8 - (397)
2,303 - - 2,303
(3,462) (492) 929 (3,025)
5,812 237 159 6,208
2,350 (255) 1,088 3,183
1,064 - - 1,064
(4,003) - - (4,003)
(2,939) « - (2,939)
76,303 3,056 6,743 86,102
(1,268) (633) 3,670 1,769
77,571 3,689 3,073 84,333
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13. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Roll-forward of net asset or liability for reinsurance contracts held showing the assets for remaining coverage
and the amounts recoverable on incurred claims (continued)

Analysis by measurement component — Contracts not measured under the PAA (continued);

31 December 2024

Net reinsurance contract assets as at 1 January 2024

Changes that relate to cutrent services
CSM recognised for services provided
Change in tisk adjustment for non-financial sisk for
Experience adjustments
Changes that relate to future services
Contracts initally recognised in the year
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM
Changes in estimates that relate to losses and
reversals of losses on onerous underlying contracts
Changes that relate to past services
Adjustments to assets for incutred claims
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts
Net finance income from reinsurance contracts
Total changes in the statement of profit or loss and
OCI
Cash flows
Premiums received
Claims and other directly attributable expenses paid
Total cash flows
Reinsurance contract assets as at 31 December 2024
Reinsurance contract liabilities as at 31 December 2024

Net reinsurance contract assets as
at 31 December 2024

CSM
Contracts
Estimates under
of present modified
value of Risk retrospective
future cash  adjustment for transition
flows non-financial risk approach Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
79,219 4342 1,733 85,294
- - (318) (318)
- 451) - (451)
(2,163) - - (2,163)
19 10 63 92
(263) (20) 284 1
32 (222) - 90
1,580 - - 1,580
(515) (683) 29 (1,169)
1,694 285 223 2,202
1,179 (398) 252 1,033
3,997 - - 3,997
{6,235) - - (6,235)
(2,238) - - {2,238)
76,875 3,305 5,472 85,652
1,285 639 (3,487 (1,563)
78,160 3,944 1,985 84,089
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For the year ended 31 December 2025

13. Insurance and reinsurance contract assets (continued)

Expected recognition of the contractual service matgin - An analysis of the expected recognition of the CSM remaining
at the end of the reporting period in profit or loss is provided in the following table (number of years until expected

to be recognised):
1year 2 year 3 year 4 year 5 year >6 year Total
AED’000 AED000 AED000 AED00 AED000 AED'000 AED000

31 December 2025
Total CSM for insurance 1,199 1,050 926 853 786 7,260 12,074
contracts issued
Total CSM for reinsurance 402 325 286 283 280 1,498 3,074
contracts held

797 725 640 570 506 5,762 9,000
31 December 2024
Total CSM for insutance 1,164 1,004 865 762 707 8,156 12,658
contracts issued
Total CSM for reinsurance 298 212 163 141 154 1,017 1,985
contracts held

866 792 702 621 553 7,139 10,673

Reconciliation of the measurement components of insurance and reinsurance contract balances measured under both

PAA and Non-PAA as at:

31 December 2025

Insurance contract liabilities
Reinsurance contract assets
Reinsurance contract liabilities

31 December 2024

Insurance contract liabilities
Reinsurance contract assets
Reinsurance contract liabilities

PAA Non-PAA Total
AED’000 AED’000 AED000
469,847 145,495 615,342
(304,012) (86,102) (390,114)
22 1,769 1,791
165,857 61,162 227,019
673,681 145,125 818,806
(526,682) (85,651) (612,333)
5 1,563 1,563

146,999 61,037 208,036
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

15. Other receivables

Other receivables
Prepaid expenses

16. Other payables

Other payables
Employee accruals
Corporate tax payables
Lease liabilities

17. Insurance revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2025

Contracts not measured under the PAA

Amonnts relating to changes in Liabilities for remaining coverage

CSM recognised for services provided

Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk expired
Expected incurred claims and other insurance setvice expenses

Recovery of insurance acquisition cash flows

Contracts measured under the PAA

For the year ended 31 December 2024
Contracts not measured under the PAA

Amounts relating to changes in Labilities for remaining coverage

CSM recognised for services provided

Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk expired
Expected incurred claims and other insurance service expenses
Recovery of insurance acquisition cash flows

Contracts measured under the PAA

31 December

31 December

2025 2024
AED000 AED’000
48,661 50,314
6,302 4,847
54,963 55,161

31 December 31 Decembet

2025 2024

AED’000 AED000

94,231 93,159

8,489 15,946

4,359 3,751

3,171 723

110,250 113,579
Life General Total
AED000 AED’000 AED’000
1,427 . 1,427
583 - 583
9,861 - 9,861
393 - 393
12,264 - 12,264
12,736 589,840 602,576
25,000 589,840 614,840
1,280 ; 1,280
573 - 573
10,423 - 10,423
392 - 392
12,668 - 12,668
19,143 559,606 578,749
31,811 559,606 591,417
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

17. Insurance revenue (continued)

The table presents the geographical distribution of insurance revenue:

United Arab Emirates
GCC
Others

18. Insurance service expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2025:
Incutred claims and other expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows
Losses on onerous contracts

Changes to liabilities for incurred claims

For the year ended 31 December 2024:

Incurred claims and other expenses

Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows

(Losses) on onerous contracts and reversals of those losses
Changes to liabilities for incutred claims

19. Net insurance financial result

For the year ended 31 December 2025

Insurance finance expense from insutance contracts issued

Reinsurance finance income from reinsurance contracts held

For the year ended 31 December 2024
Insurance finance income from insurance contracts issued

Reinsutance finance expense from reinsurance contracts held

For the year ended 31 December

2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000
605,949 561,223
8,614 28,711
277 1,483
614,840 591,417
Life General Total
AED’000 AED000 AED’000
20,738 474,508 495,246
1,110 48,599 49,709
(1,577) (14,001) (15,578)
(4,658) (131,298) (135,956)
15,613 377,808 393,421
34,549 399,747 434,296
1,486 47,551 49,037
(2,090) 13,378 11,288
(17,211) 45,236 28,025
16,734 505,912 522,646
Life General Total
AED’000 AED000 AED’000
(8,541) (15,727) (24,268)
7,128 10,694 17,822
(4,854) {13,755) (18,609)
3,763 9672 13,435
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

20. Net investment income

2025 2024
AED’000 AED000
Interest income 19,696 17,036
Dividend income 2,445 3,016
Realised gain /(loss) on sale of investments at FVTPL 1,207 (275)
Unrealised gain on investments at FVTPL 4,333 716
Investment management expenses (756) (724)
Others 1 (35)
Net investment income 26,926 19,734

21 Other operating expenses - net
2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000
Gain from sale of land under property and equipment a (14,215)
Others 3,247 13,688
3,247 527

211 The commitment of short-term leases

The commitment for short term leases amounting to AED 1,102 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2025
(31 December 2024: AED 950 thousand).

22, Leases
(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position
The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

22,1  Right-of-use assets

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

AED’000 AED000

Balance at the beginning of the year 912 3,864
Additions during the year 3,312 -
Depreciation expense for the year (927) (2,952)
Balance at the end of the year 3,297 912
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

22, Leases (continued)

22.2  Lease liablities

Lease liabilites are classified under other payables in note 16. Movement of lease liabilities during the year was

as follows:

At 1 January

Additions during the year
Accrued interest
Payments during the year

At 31 December

As at Asat

31 December 31 December
2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000
723 3,817

3,171 5

- 147

(723) (3,241)

3,171 723

The incremental borrowing rate used for calculation of lease liabilities is 6.7% for the year ended 31 December 2025

(31 December 2024: 6.7%)

Cutrent and non-current portion of lease liabilities are as follows:

Non-cutrent portion
Cutrent portion

23. Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year

Payments during the year

Balance at the end of the year

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000
1,641 -

1,530 723

3,171 723

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2025 2024
AED000 AED000
12,158 13,954

736 1,762

(4,163) (3,558)

8,731 12,158
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

24. Basic and diluted earnings per share
2025 2024
Restated
Profit for the yeat after tax (in 000) 45,977 38,307
Number of outstanding shares 230,000 230,000
Basic earnings after tax pet share (in AED) 0.200 0.167

During the yeat, the Company finalized a reduction of 100,939 thousand shares, as approved by shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting held on 21 April 2025. This reduction was executed to offset accumulated losses and
resulted in a decrease in the number of shares from 330,939 thousand to 230,000 thousand shates.

In accordance with IAS 33 “Earnings Per Share”, the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of EPS for the comparative petiod (31 December 2024) has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the
capital reduction.

25. Social contributions

The Company did not make any social contributions during the year ended 31 December 2025 (2024: AED Nil).

26, Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable. The Company writes general, medical and life insurance contracts. General insurance contracts of
the Company include Liability, Property, Motor, Fire, Marine, General accident and Engineering insurance
contracts. Medical insurance contracts include both individual and group medical insurance contracts. Life insurance
contracts include group, Individual Life and credit life insurance contracts.

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or
the timing thereof differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, sevetity of claims, actual
benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to
ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities. '

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk
management framework. The Board has established the Audit and Risk Management Committee, which is
responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management framework. The Committee teports
regulatly to the Board of Directors on its activities related to Risk Management framework and further
developments. The primary purpose of Risk Management framework is to protect the shareholdets from events
that deter the sustainable achievement of the set financial/performance objective.

The Company's tisk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed tegulatly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Risk
Management principles are embedded in Company’s operational and financial processes and further
mitigation/controls are implemented for effective Internal Risk Management framework in the functional processes.

The Company’s Audit and Risk Management Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the tisks faced by the Company. The Company's Audit and Risk Management Committee is assisted
in its oversight role by Internal Audit and Risk functions.
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Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

26. Insurance risk (continued)
Risk management framework (continued)

The Company does not foresee any material impact to its business and operations due to possible climate change
effect in the near future, The Company will, howevet, be collating necessary data to monitor the possible effect on
a petiodic basis going forward.

Two key elements of the Company's insurance risk management framework are its underwriting strategy and
reinsurance strategy, as discussed below.

Underwriting strategy

The Company's underwriting strategy is to build balanced portfolios based on a large number of similar risks. This
reduces the variability of the portfolio’s outcome.

The underwriting strategy is set out by the Company that establishes the classes of business to be written, the
territories in which business is to be written and the industry sectors in which the Company is ptepared to
underwrite. This strategy is cascaded by the business units to individual underwriters through detailed underwriting
authorities that set out the limits that any one underwriter can write by line size, class of business, tetritory and
industry in order to ensure appropriate tisk selection within the portfolio.

Business selection is part of Company’s underwriting procedutes/guidelines whereby premiums ate charged based
on the assessment and type of the risks. Other factors such as risk inspections, mortality, persistency and curtent
market trends are also considered in the risk underwriting and premium calculation.

Reinsurance strategy

The Company’s reinsurance arrangements include proportional, non-proportional, excess of loss and catastrophe
coverage. The Company reinsures a portion of the insurance risks it underwrites in order to control its exposure to
losses and protect capital resources.

The Company has a Reinsurance department that is responsible to arrange reinsurance arrangement as pet the
annual business plans and also for setting the minimum-secutity critetia for acceptable reinsurance and monitoring
the purchase of reinsurance by the business units against those criteria. The department monitors developments
in the reinsurance programme and its ongoing adequacy. As a proactive measure and part of Risk Management
framework, the reinsurers secutities rating is monitored for any downgrade from credit risk perspective. The
reinsurance regulations issued by the CBUAE are also incorporated in the Reinsurance strategy.

The Company entets into a combination of proportionate and non-proportionate reinsurance treaties to reduce the
net exposure to the Company. In addition, underwriters are allowed to buy facultative reinsurance in certain
specified circumstances.

26.1  Frequency and severity of claims

The Company manages risks through its underwriting strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive
claims handling. The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks ate well diversified in
terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate
risk selection criteria.

The Company has the right not to renew individual policies, to re-price the risk, to impose deductibles and to reject
the payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to pursue third parties for payment
of some or all costs (for example, subrogation). Furthermore, the Company’s strategy limits the total exposure to
any one territory and the exposute to any one industry.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

26. Insurance risk (continued)
26.1  Frequency and severity of claims (continued)

The reinsurance arrangements include excess and catastrophe coverage. The effect of such reinsurance
arrangements is that the Company should not suffer net insurance losses of a set minimum limit of AED 1,000
thousand (31 December 2024: 1,000 thousand) in any one event. The Company has survey units dealing with the
mitigation of risks surrounding claims. This unit investigates and recommends ways to improve risk claims. The
risks are frequently reviewed individually and adjusted to reflect the latest information on the underlying facts,
current law, jurisdiction, contractual terms and conditions, and other factors. The Company actively manages and
pursues eatly settlements of claims to reduce its exposure to unpredictable developments.

26.2  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on insurance conttacts ate payable on a claims-occuttence basis. The Company is liable for all insured events
that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of the contract term. As a
result, certain claims are settled over a long period of time and element of the claims provision includes incurred
but not reported claims (IBNR). The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than
the estimation of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Company, where information about the claim
event is available. IBNR claims may not be appatent to the insured until many years after the event that gave rise to
the claims. For some insurance contracts, the IBNR proportion of the total liability is high and will typically display
greater variations between initial estimates and final outcomes because of the greater degree of difficulty of
estimating these liabilities. In estimating the liability for the cost of reported claims not yet paid, the Company
considers information available from loss adjusters and information on the cost of settling claims with similar
characteristics in previous periods. Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected separately in order
to allow for the possible distortive effect of their development and incidence on the rest of the portfolio. In
estimating the liability for claims incutred but not repotted, the Company involves an independent external
appointed actuary.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and othet recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has approptiate
information regarding its claims’ exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is
possible that the final outcome will prove to be diffetent from the original liability established. The amount of
insurance claims is in certain cases sensitive to the level of court awards and to the development of legal precedent
on mattets of contract and toxt.

Whete possible, the Company adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This provides
a greater understanding of the trends inherent in the experience being projected. The projections given by the
vatious methodologies also assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes. The most approptiate estimation
technique is selected taking into account the characteristics of the business class and the extent of the development
of each accident year.

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both repotted and not), the Company’s estimation techniques
are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates and an estimate based upon actual claims expetience using
predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes. The initial loss-
tatio estimate is an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based on previous years’ expetience,
adjusted for factots such as premium rate changes, anticipated market experience and historical claims inflation.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

26. Insurance risk (continued)
26.2  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments (continued)

The loss ratios for the current and prior year, before and after reinsurance are summarised below by type of tisk:

31 December 2025 31 December 2024
Gross loss Net loss Gross loss Net loss
Type of risk ratio ratio ratio ratio
General insurance 46% 63% 67% 63%
Life insurance 43% 42% 24% 19%

Based on the simulations petformed, the impact on profit of a change of 1% in the loss ratio for both gross and net
of reinsurance recoveries would be as follows:

2025 2024
Gross Net Gross Net
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Impact of an increase of 1% 3,426 1,161 2,233 970
Impact of a decrease of 1% (3,426) (1,161) (2,233) (970

26.3  Process used to determine the assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in
neutral estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The soutces of data used as inputs for the assumptions
are internal, using detailed studies that ate catried out quattetly. The assumptions are checked to ensure that they
are consistent with observable market practices or other published information.

The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with cettainty the likely outcome of any particular claim
and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate case by case basis with due
regard to the claim circumstances, information available from loss adjusters and historical evidence of the size of
similar claims.

Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information arises.

The provisions ate based on information cutrently available. However, the ultimate labilities may vary as a result of
subsequent developments ot if catastrophic events occut. The impact of many of the items affecting the ultimate
costs of the loss is difficult to estimate.

The provision estimation difficulties also differ by class of business due to differences in the underlying insurance
contract, claim complexity, the volume of claims and the individual severity of claims, determining the occurrence
date of a claim, and reporting lags.

The method used by the Company for calculating the provision of IBNR takes into account historical data, past
estimates and details of the reinsurance programme, to assess the expected size of reinsurance recoveties. The
methods more commonly used are the chain-ladder (“CL”), expected loss ratios (“ELR”) and the Bornhuettet-
Ferguson (“BF”’) methods.

Chain-ladder methods may be applied to premiums, paid claims or incurred claims (for example, paid claims plus
case estimates). The basic technique involves the analysis of historical claims development factors and the selection
of estimated development factors based on this historical pattern. The selected development factors are then applied
to cumulative claims data for each accident year that is not yet fully developed to produce an estimated ultimate
claims cost for each accident year.
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

26. Insurance risk (continued)
26.3  Process used to determine the assumptions (continued)

Chain-ladder techniques are most apptroptiate for those accident years and classes of business that have reached a
telatively stable development pattern. Chain-ladder techniques are less suitable in cases in which the insuret does
not have a developed claims history for a particular class of business.

The Bornhuetter-Ferguson method uses a combination of a benchmark or market- based estimate and an estimate
based on claims experience. The former is based on a measure of exposure such as premiums; the latter is based on
the paid or incurred claims to date. The two estimates are combined using a formula that gives more weight to the
experience-based estimate as time passes. This technique has been used in situations in which developed claims
experience was not available for the projection (recent accident years or new classes of business).

The choice of selected results for each accident year of each class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to observed historical developments. In certain instances, this has meant
that a weighted average of different techniques have been selected for individual accident years or groups of accident
years within the same class of business. The Company has an internal actuary, and independent external actuaries
are also involved in the valuation of technical reserves of the Company and has used historical data for the past 9
years.

The key assumptions used for the life insurance contracts are as follows:

Morzality

An appropriate base table of standard mortality is chosen depending on the type of contract. An investigation into
Company’s experience over the most recent three years is performed, and statistical methods are used to adjust the
rates reflected in the table to a best estimate of mortality for that year. Where data is sufficient to be statistically
credible, the statistics generated by the data are used without reference to an industry table, For contracts insuring
survivorship, an allowance is made for future mortality improvements based on trends identified in the data and in
the continuous mortality investigatons petformed by independent actuarial bodies.

Morbidity
The rate of recovery from disability is derived from industry experience studies, adjusted whete appropriate for the

Company’s own expetience.

An analysis of sensitivity around various scenarios provides an indication of the adequacy of the Company’s
estimation process. The Company believes that the liability reported in the statement of financial position is
adequate.

However, it recognises that the process of estimation is based upon certain variables and assumptions which could
differ when claims are finally settled.
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Union Insurance Company P.]J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

26. Insurance risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Contracts measured under PAA

2025

Weighted
average term to
settlement
Expected loss
Inflation rate

Weighted
average tetm to
settlement
Expected loss
Inflation rate

2024

Weighted
average term to
settlement
Expected loss
Inflation rate

Weighted
average term to
settlement
Expected loss
Inflation rate

Impactonnet  Impact on net Impact on Impact on

Change in proﬁ; proﬁ; eqmty; equity

assumptions gross o net o gross o net of

reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

+10% 1,358 511 1,358 511

+10% 56,178 20,965 56,178 20,965

+1% 136 51 136 51

-10% (1,358) (511) (1,358) (511)

-10% (56,178) (20,965) (56,178) (20,965)

-1% (136) (51) (136) (51)
Impact on net Impact on net

Chunge o profit proﬁ; Impact on equir;; Impact on equity

astiphons  gross of ~ neto  gtoss o net of

reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000

+10% 1,687 504 1,687 504

+10% 67,728 17,830 67,728 17,830

+1% 169 50 169 50

-10% (1,687) (504 (1,687) (504

-10% (67,728) (17,830) (67,728) (17,830)

-1% (169) (50) (169) (50
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Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

26. Insurance risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Contracts not measured under PAA

2025

Mortality
Lapse
Risk adjustment

Mortality
Lapse
Risk adjustment

2024

Mortality
Lapse
Risk adjustment

Mortality
Lapse
Risk adjustment

Impact on net profit

Impact on net profit

Change in p .
doinia gross of reinsurance net of reinsurance
assump AED*000 AED’000
+15% (4,163) (1,836)
+50% - -
+10% (419) (298)
-20% 3,905 907
-50% - -
-10% 362 241
T Impact on net profit Impact on net profit
gti gross of reinsurance net of reinsurance
assumptions AED’000 AED’000
+15% 157 1,721
+40% 10,435 (5,786)
+10% 25 270
-15% (157) (1,721)
-40% (10,435) 5,786
-10% (25) (270)
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27. Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:
e to comply with the insurance capital requirements requited by U.A.E. Federal Law No. (6) of 2025;

o to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

° to provide an adequate return to shateholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the
level of risk.

In U.A.E., Insurance Companies register of the Central Bank of the U A.E. (“CBUAE”) specifies the minimum
amount and type of capital that must be held by the Company in addition to its insurance liabilities. The minimum
required capital (presented in the table below) must be maintained at all times throughout the year.

The table below summarises the minimum required capital of the Company and the total capital held.

As at Asat

31 December 31 December

2025 2024

AED’000 AED'000

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) 100,000 100,000
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) 100,609 102,312
Minimum Guarantee Fund (MGF) 116,079 90,721
Basic own funds 182,287 146,624
MCR Solvency Margin-Surplus 82,287 46,624
SCR Solvency Margin 78,383 44,313
MGF Solvency Margin-Sutplus 66,208 55,903

The Federal Cabinet of the U.A.E. has issued resolution No. 42 for 2009 setting the minimum subsctibed or paid-
up capital of AED 100 million for establishing insurance firms and AED 250 million for reinsurance firms. The
resolution also stipulates that at least 51 percent of the capital of the insurance companies established in the UAE
should be owned by UAE or GCC national individuals or corporate bodies. The Company is in compliance with
the minimum capital requirements.

Further, as per Article (8) of section (2) of financial regulations issued for insurance companies in U.A.E., the
Company shall at all times comply with the requirements of solvency margin.
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28. Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the chatactetistics of the asset or liability if market participants take those charactetistics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1: Quoted matket price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) ot
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using quoted market prices in active
markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less
than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.

Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similat
instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, compatison with similat
instruments for which market observable prices exist. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include
tisk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount rates, bond and
equity prices, foreign currency exchange rates, equity index prices and expected price volatilities and cotrelations.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be
received to sell the asset ot paid to transfer the liability in an ordetly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

281 Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortized cost

Management considers that the cattying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at amortised
cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
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Union Insurance Company P.]J.S.C.
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For the year ended 31 December 2025

28. Fair value measurements (continued)
28.2  Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets measured at FVTOCI and FVTPL

FVTPL FVTOCI Total

AED’000 AED000 AED’000

At 1 January 2024 1,484 - 1,484
Changes in fair value (5 - (5
As at 31 December 2024 1,479 - 1,479
Changes in fair value (1,175) - (1,175)
As at 31 December 2025 304 - 304

There were no transfers between the levels during the year.
29. Financial risk management

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its financial assets, financial liabilities, and reinsurance.
assets and insurance liabilities. In particular, the key financial risk is that in the long-term its investment proceeds
are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The most important components of
this financial risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk (which includes foreign cutrency risk, equity and debt
price risk and interest rate tisk) and operational risk.

29.1 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Company.

Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:

insurance receivables;

other receivables;

investment securities - debt;

bank deposits with original maturities of more than three months;
statutory deposit; and

cash and cash equivalents

The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the tisk of
financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterpatties. Credit
exposute is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by Management annually.

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as primary
insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company remains liable for the payment to the
policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial
strength ptior to finalization of any contract.
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

29.1  Credit risk (continued)

The Company maintains recotds of the payment history for significant contract holders with whom it conducts
regular business. The exposure to individual counterpatties is also managed by other mechanisms, such as the right
of offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors of the Company. Management information reported
to the Company includes details of provisions for impairment on insurance receivables and subsequent write-offs.
Exposures to individual policyholdets and groups of policyholders are collected within the ongoing monitoring of
the controls. Where there exists significant exposure to individual policyholders, or homogenous groups of
policyholders, a financial analysis equivalent to that conducted for reinsurers is carried out by the Company.

Insurance receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of insurance receivable.

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a latge number of
counterparties and customers. The Company defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are
related entities. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The carrying amount of financial assets tecorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Company’s maximurm exposure to credit risk.

292  Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity tisk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
approptiate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity tisk by maintaining
adequate reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and Liabilities.

The table below summatizes the matutity profile of the Company’s insutance and financial instruments. The
contractual maturities of the financial instruments have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at
the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The matutity profile is monitored by management to ensure
adequate liquidity is maintained. The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting
date based on contractual repayment arrangements was as follows:
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

29.2  Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2025

Assets

Statutory deposit

Tnvestment securities

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
Unit linked assets
Reinsurance contract assets

Bank deposits

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities
Reinsurance contract
liabilities

Unit linked liabilities

Other payables

Lease liabilities

‘Total

Carrying Less than 1

Over 5 No maturity

Total

amount year 1to 5 years years date
AED’000 AED000 AED’000 AED000 AED000 AED’000
10,000 - - - 10,000 10,000
57,347 1,830 - - 55,517 57,347
27 - - - 27 27
341,261 - 85,315 255,946 - 341,261
390,092 316,374 18,430 55,289 - 390,092
439,045 439,045 - - - 439,045
54,963 21,985 32,978 - - 54,963
30,853 30,853 - - - 30,853
1,323,588 810,087 136,723 311,235 65,544 1,323,588
615,342 469,847 36,374 109,121 - 615,342
1,791 1,791 - - - 1,791
306,181 - 76,545 229,636 - 306,181
107,079 107,079 - - - 107,079
3,171 1,641 1,530 - - 3,171
1,033,564 580,358 114,449 338,757 - 1,033,564
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29, Financial Risk Management (continued)

29.2  Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2024

Assets

Statutory deposit

Investment sectirities

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value
through other
comptehensive income
Unit linked assets
Reinsurance contract assets
Bank deposits

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Total

Liabilities

Insutance contract liabilities
Reinsurance contract
liabilities

Unit linked liabilities

Other payables

Lease liabilities

Total

Catrying  Less than 1 No martutity
amount year 1to 5 years Over 5 years date Total
AED’000 AED000 AED000 AED000  AED000  AED000
10,000 - - - 10,000 10,000
47,061 3,716 1,807 - 41,538 47,061
30 - - - 30 30
359,176 89,794 269,382 - 359,176
612,333 526,682 21,413 64,239 - 612,334
408,993 408,993 - - - 408,993
55,161 22,064 33,097 - - 55,161
13,920 13,920 - - - 13,920
1,506,674 975,375 146,111 333,621 51,568 1,506,675
818,806 673,681 36,282 108,845 - 818,807
1,563 1,563 - - - 1,563
324,606 81,152 243,455 - 324,606
112,856 112,856 - - - 112,856
723 723 - - - 723
1,258,554 788,823 117,434 352,300 - 1,258,554
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)
293  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the futute cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual security, or its issuet,
ot factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Company’s market risks arise from open positions in (a)
foreign cutrencies (b) interest bearing and (c) price risk assets and liabilities, to the extent they are exposed to general
and specific market movements. Management sets limits on the exposure to currency and interest rate risk that may
be acceptable, which are monitored on a regular basis. Howevet, the use of this approach does not prevent losses
outside of these limits in the event of more significant market movements. The unit-linked contracts have not been
considered for sensitivity of matket risk and as these are merely passed through contracts.

Sensitivities to market tisks included below ate based on 2 change in one factor while holding all other factors constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occut, and changes in some of the factors may be correlated — for example, credit
spreads, changes in interest rate and changes in foreign currency rates.

Market risk drivers include equity prices, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and interest rates. The Company limits
market tisk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments in local equity and
bond matkets. In addition, the Company actively monitors the key factors that affect stock and bond matket
movements, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.

29.3.1 Foreign currency risk

Cutrency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates
and atises from financial instruments denominated in a foreign cutrency. The Company’s functional currency is the
UAE Dirham.

The Company has also exposures in USD, to which the AED is pegged and the Company’s exposure to currency risk
is limited to that extent.

29.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates to its bank deposits. At 31 December 2025, bank deposits carty
fixed interest rates ranging from 1.5% to 6% per annum (31 December 2024: 2% to 6% per annum) and therefore
not exposed to cashflow interest rate risk.

29.3.3 Pricerisk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other
than those atising from interest rate risk ot currency tisk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument ot its issuet, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company’s price risk exposure relates to financial assets and financial liabilities whose values will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices. The Company’s equity price risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting
and monitoring objectives and constraints on investments, divetsification plans, sector and market. The fair values of
financial assets ate not different from their carrying values.
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)

29.3  Market risk (continued)

29.3.3 Price risk (continued)

Sensitivities

The table below shows the results of sensitivity testing on the Company’s profit or loss and other comprehensive

income by type of business. The sensitivity analysis indicates the effect of changes in price risk factors arising from
the impact of the changes in these factors on the Company’s investments:

10% increase in price 10% decrease in price
FVIPL FVTOCI FVTIPL FVTOCI
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
2025
Quoted debt investments 183 - (183) -
Quoted equity investments 5,521 3 (5,521) 3)
Unquoted equity investments 30 - (30) -
2024
Quoted debt investments 276 - (276) -
Quoted equity investments 4,282 3 (4,282) (3)
Unquoted equity investments 148 - (148) -

29.4  Operational risk

Operational risk is the tisk of loss atising from system failure, human etror, fraud or external events. When controls
fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead
to financial loss.

The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and
by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks.

The Company has detailed systems and procedures manuals with effective segregation of duties, access controls,
authotization and reconciliation procedutes, staff training and assessment processes etc. with a focus on
compliance and internal audit framework. Business risks such as changes in envitonment, technology and the
industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting process.
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29. Financial Risk Management (continued)
29.5 Classification of financial assets and liabilities

(@) The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial asset and liability and their
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2025:

Amortised
FVTPL FVTOCI cost Total

AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - 30,853 30,853
Bank deposits with original maturities of

more than three months - - 439,045 439,045

Statutory deposit - - 10,000 10,000
Investment securities 57,347 27 - 57,374
Unit linked assets 328,082 - 13,179 341,261
Total 385,429 27 493,077 878,533
Financial liabilities:
Other payables - - 123,057 123,057
Unit linked liabilities 306,182 - - 306,182
Total 306,182 - 123,057 429,239

{b) The table below sets out the Company’s classification of each class of financial asset and liability and their
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2024:

Amortised
FVIPL FVTOCI cost Total

AED000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - = 13,920 13,920
Bank deposits with original maturities of - - 408,993 408,993
morte than three months
Statutory deposit - - 10,000 10,000
Investment securities 47,061 30 - 47,091
Unit linked assets 346,856 - 12,320 359,176
Total 393,917 30 445233 839,180
Financial liabilities:
Other payables - - 113,579 113,579
Unit linked liabilities 324,606 - - 324,606
Total 324,606 - 113,579 438,185

72



Union Insurance Company P.J.S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

30. Gross written premiums

Details relating to gross written premium are disclosed below to comply with the requirements of CBUAE and
are not calculated as per the requirements of IFRS 17.

31 December 2025

Direct written premiums

Assumed business
Foreign

Local

Total assumed business
Gross written premiums

31 December 2024

Direct written premiums

Assumed business
Foreign
Local

Total assumed business
Gross written premiums

31. Corporate tax

All types of

Life Medical Property & Business
Insurance Insurance Liability Combined
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
38,123 256,090 373,884 668,097

- - 313 313

- - 10,230 10,230

- - 10,543 10,543

38,123 256,090 384,427 678,640

All types of

Medical Property & Business

Life Insurance Insurance Liability Combined
AED’000 AED’000 AED’000 AED’000
60,883 234,985 346,431 642,299

- - 1,172 1,172

2 = 11,290 11,290

- - 12,462 12,462

60,883 234,985 358,893 654,761

The Company has calculated their income tax liability in accordance with Federal Decree-Law No 47 of 2022 on the
Taxation of Cotporations and Businesses, Corporate Tax Law (“CT Law”) with effect from 1 January 2024.

() The income tax expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income comprises the following:

Cutrrent tax (refer (ii) below)

2025 2024
AED’000 AED’000
2,833 3,751
2,833 3,751

73



Union Insurance Company P.].S.C.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2025

31 Corporate tax (continued)

(i) Reconciliation of income tax expense:

2025 2024

AED000 AED000

Profit for the year before tax 48,811 42,058

Corporate tax @9% on profit before tax 4,393 3,785

Effect of:
Less:

Prior year excess tax adjustment (1,526) -

Exemption limit AED 375,000 (34) (34)

Corporate income tax expense for the year at the rate of 9% 2,833 3,751
32. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Boatd of Directots and authotized for issue on 16 Februatry 2026.
33. Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the statement of financial position date that would significantly affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2025.
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